
 

REGULAR MEETING 

April 04, 2022 
10:00 AM 

 
Albany-Dougherty Government Center 
222 Pine Ave, Room 100, Albany, GA 31701 

 

 
AGENDA 

To comply with the request set forth by the Chairman of Dougherty County, GA and the 
guidelines of the Center for Disease Control (CDC) regarding the Coronavirus (COVID19) 
pandemic and social distancing, face coverings (masks) are optional for all meeting participants. 

 

The public will also have access to the live meeting by accessing the Dougherty County Georgia 
Government Facebook page at facebook.com/Dougherty.ga.us or viewing the public 
government access channel (Channel 16). 

1. Call the meeting to order by Chairman Christopher Cohilas. 

2. Roll Call. 

3. Invocation. 

4. Pledge of Allegiance. 

5. Minutes. 

a. Consider for action the Minutes of the March 7th Regular Meeting, March 14th Work 
Session and March 14th Special Called Meeting.  ACTION: 

6. Delegations (The Commission will hear comments on those items pertaining to Dougherty 
County for which a public hearing has not been held or scheduled. Please be brief, to the 
point, and considerate of time for others). 

7. Purchases. 

a. Consider for action the recommendation to purchase six (6) Pursuit Utility Vehicles 
from Wade Ford (Smyrna, GA) in the amount of $33,667.80 each for a total 
expenditure of $202,006.80.  Three vendors submitted bids with two meeting 
specifications and the highest bid received was $207,505.32.  Funding is budgeted in 
SPLOST VII.  ACTION: 

  

1



b. Consider for action the recommendation to purchase fifty (50) mobile radios for DCP 
from single source vendor Motorola Solutions (Albany, GA) in the amount of 
$278,647.81.  Parts are no longer available to repair aged inventory.  Funding is 
available in the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA).  ACTION: 

c. Consider for action the recommendation to purchase two (2) 2022 F-350 Cab & 
Chassis with an Ambulance Prep Package and Patient Module from Wade Ford 
(Smyrna, GA) in the amount of $158,289 each for a total expenditure of $316,578.  The 
purchase will be made from the State of Georgia Contract.  Funding will be provided 
by SPLOST VII.  ACTION: 

d. Consider for action the Resolution providing for acceptance and execution of the 
contract to accept the bid for the carpet/cove base replacement for the Dougherty 
County Health Department from Continental Flooring Company (Scottsdale, AZ) in the 
amount of $326,900 subject to execution of the contract by the County 
Administrator.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII.  ACTION: 

e. Consider for action the recommendation to accept the quote to replace the air handler 
unit for the Dougherty County Health Department from RHC HVAC (Albany, Ga) in the 
amount of $56,955.37.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII.  ACTION: 

f. Consider for action the resolution providing for acceptance and execution of the 
contract to accept the proposal for Dougherty County's On-Site Medical Services from 
CareATC (Tulsa, Oklahoma) in the amount of $492,863.89 subject to execution of the 
contract by the County Administrator.   The recommendation is for one year firm price 
contract with three options to renew for an additional one-year term.  The proposed 
cost for year two is $514,170.39 and year three is $534,150.10.   Funding is available 
in the General Fund.  ACTION: 

g. Consider for action the resolution providing for acceptance and execution of the 
Professional Services Agreement between Dougherty County, GA and DCJ Global 
Management Solutions, LLC (Stockbridge, GA) in a not to exceed amount of 
$157,500.  This agreement is being entered in on behalf of Chief Superior Court Judge 
Willie Lockette to receive services of a grant administrator.  In the January 24, 2022 
Regular Meeting the Board accepted the Judicial Council of Georgia American Rescue 
Plan Act Funding Award in the amount of $2,000,000.  The stipulation of the award is 
to have a grant administrator.  County Administrator Michael McCoy will 
address.  ACTION: 

8. Additional Business. 

a. Consider for action the resolution to adopt the amended and restated ACCG 401(a) 
Defined Contribution Plan for Dougherty County Employees.  The effective date of the 
amended and restated Plan shall be January 1, 2022.  ACTION: 

9. Updates from the County Administrator. 

10. Updates from the County Attorney. 

11. Updates from the County Commission. 

2



12. Adjourn. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of 
the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Coordinator at 229-431-2121 
promptly to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

3



 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

March 7, 2022 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on March 7, 2022.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and called the meeting to 

order at 10 a.m.  Present [in the Chamber] were Commissioners Victor Edwards,  

Gloria Gaines, Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones and Ed Newsome.  County Administrator 

Michael McCoy and Commissioner Gray participated via the audio-conferencing feature.  

Also present were Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, County Attorney  

Spencer Lee, County Clerk Jawahn Ware and other staff.  The public and representatives of 

the media participated in person and via live streaming of the meeting on the County’s 

Facebook page and the government public access channel.   

 

After the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance done by Commissioner Johnson, the Chairman 

called for approval of the minutes for the February 4th County Retreat, February 7th Regular 

Meeting, February 14th Work Session and February 14th Special Called Meeting.   

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

minutes were unanimously approved. 

 

The Chairman recognized Citizen Dr. Amanda Green to share concerns pertaining to 

Dougherty County Police.  Dr. Green shared her concerns that police reports are not being 

written and if so, she has some additional concerns regarding information being listed.  She 

wanted to address the Commission because they appointed the Chief of Police.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration to purchase a commercial washer and dryer for the Jail 

from single-source vendor Commercial Coin and Laundry (Gulf Breeze, FL) in the amount of 

$36,130.75.  The recommendation is to purchase the equipment using the same vendor for 

past purchases.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VI- Jail Facility Equipment. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration to approve the Alcohol Application from Big E's 

Country Store LLC, Alpeshkumar Patel licensee, dba Big E's Country Store, at 2100 Cordele 

Road for Package- Beer and Package - Wine.   The Albany-Dougherty Marshal’s Office 

recommended approval.   

4

Item 5a.



Commissioner Newsome moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, the 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the enforcement of 

Dougherty County Nuisance Abatement Resolution relative to properties located at 2806 

Barnaby Drive, 2510 Big Oak Court, 309 Pryor Street and 2604 Banks Avenue. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the 

motion passed unanimously.   Resolution 21-012 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR INVESTIGATION AND/OR 

INSPECTION BY THE PUBLIC OFFICER AS DESIGNATED UNDER 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY NUISANCE ABATEMENT RESOLUTION 

NUMBER 02-034 AND/OR HIS OR HER DESIGNEE AND 

PROVIDING FOR THE ENFORCEMENT OF THE DOUGHERTY 

COUNTY NUISANCE ABATEMENT RESOLUTION RELATIVE TO 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE 

UNINCORPORATED AREA OF DOUGHERTY COUNTY; 

REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN 

CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the approval and 

execution of an Easement Agreement between the City of Albany, Georgia and Dougherty 

County, Georgia relative to that portion of the Flint River Trail System known as the ASU to 

Downtown Albany Connector.  County Attorney Spencer Lee addressed.  Attorney Lee said 

that the document was in order to be approved. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Commissioner Newsome seconded the motion.  

Under discussion, Chairman Cohilas confirmed that this will allow us to start the project.  

Attorney Lee said that it will allow Procurement to work with Public Works to put the bid out.  

There being no further discussion, the motion passed unanimously.  Resolution 21-013 is 

entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL 

AND EXECUTION OF AN EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA AND 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA RELATIVE TO THE 

SECTION OF THE FLINT RIVER TRAIL SYSTEM 

5

Item 5a.



KNOWN AS THE ASU TO DOWNTOWN ALBANY 

CONNECTOR; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS 

OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND 

FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

Commissioner Gaines gave kudos to Coach Miller and his team at Westover High School for 

the local area clean-up.  Other volunteers and organizations were recognized; a request for 

prayers for the citizens in Ukraine was made.  She reminded the Board of the Governmental 

Affairs Committee meeting next week.  Commissioner Johnson provided a positive recap 

from the economic events pertaining to the Snickers Marathon.  Chairman Cohilas shared that 

he is planning health initiatives to attract citizens and encouraged others to participate.  He 

also asked Administration to look at a physical activity race.  

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation from the County Attorney to 

enter into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing personnel and then to adjourn. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

There being no further discussion, the Board entered into Executive Session at 10:30 a.m. 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

6

Item 5a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

 

March 14, 2022 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on March 14, 2022.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and called the meeting to 

order at 10:07 am.  Present [in the Chamber] were Commissioners Victor Edwards,  

Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones and Ed Newsome.  Also 

participating in the Chamber were Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, County 

Attorney Spencer Lee, County Clerk Jawahn Ware, and other staff.  County Administrator 

Michael McCoy participated via the audio-conferencing feature.  The public and representatives 

of the media participated in person via live streaming of the meeting on the County’s Facebook 

page and the government public access channel.   

 

The Chairman asked the Commission to review the minutes of the February 21st Regular 

Meeting, February 28th Work Session and February 28th Special Called Meeting. 

 

The Chairman recognized Dougherty County Police Chief Kenneth Johnson present to update 

the Commission with their annual report.  Several statistics were shared.  Chief Johnson added 

that the total years of law enforcement experience lost was 309 years with a 100% turnover 

rate.  He verbally recognized Cpl Jercory McCray as the 2021 Officer of the year, Clerk 

Dispatcher Crystal Reynolds as the 2021 Staff of the year and Cpl Don Eubanks and Ptl Bert 

Jones as the 2021 Top Gun award; both of these individuals shot a perfect score. He also 

recognized Ptl David Gadd as the 2021 Traffic Officer of the year.  Questions of the 

Commission were answered and the Chairman asked for an update on the discussion to combine 

the Gang Unit and ADDU.  

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of a zoning consideration for Muggridge & Wimberly 

Limited, LLC, owner and Lanier Engineering, Inc., applicant (22-008) request for special 

approval to operate a Self-Storage Facility in a C-3 (Commercial District).  The parcel is a .77-

acre vacant lot. The property is located at 2707 Upland Ct.  The Planning Commission 

recommended approval.  Angel Gray, Planning Manager, addressed.  The Public Hearing and 

Action are scheduled for March 21, 2022. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion to purchase one Batwing Mower for Public Works from 

the Sourcewell Contract servicing dealer Flint Equipment Company (Leesburg, GA) in the 

amount of $24,252.36.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII.  Assistant County Administrator 

Scott Addison addressed.  Public Works Director Chuck Mathis was present.  Mr. Addison said 

that this is a replacement of existing equipment and requested approval. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion to purchase one 2022 John Deere 6105E 4x4 Tractor and 

one 2022 John Deere HX7 Mower for Public Works from the Sourcewell Contract servicing 

dealer Flint Equipment Company (Leesburg, GA) for a total expenditure of $76,466.52.  

Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII.  Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison 

7

Item 5a.



addressed.  Public Works Director Chuck Mathis was present.  Mr. Addison said that these are 

life cycle replacements and requested approval. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion to declare the listed vehicles and equipment as surplus 

and authorize the disposal of or sale of same via an online auction.  Assistant County 

Administrator Scott Addison addressed.  Mr. Addison said that this was a standard process. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of the proposed board appointments. County Clerk 

Jawahn Ware addressed. 

 

Department of Family and Children Services- There is one appointment with an unexpired five-

year term ending June 30, 2024.  There is one new applicant: Barbara Johnson-Clark. 

 

Payroll Development Authority – There is one appointment with an unexpired three-year term 

ending December 31, 2024.  There are four new applicants: Will Davis, Roderick Garner, 

Jeretha Peters and William Wright.  

 

It was shared that Commissioner Edwards (District 2), Commissioner Gray (District 4) and 

Commissioner Jones (District 6) will all serve another 4-year term.  Commissioner Johnson 

thanked Public Works for the work done on the holding pond.  

 

There being no further business to discuss the Commission the meeting adjourned at  

10:32 a.m. 

 
 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

8

Item 5a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES 

 

March 14, 2022 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met for a Special Called Meeting in Room 100 of the 

Albany-Dougherty Government Center on March 14, 2022 immediately after the Work 

Session.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and called the meeting to order at 10:32 am.  

Present were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, Clinton Johnson, 

Anthony Jones and Ed Newsome.  Also present were Assistant County Administrator  

Scott Addison, County Attorney Spencer Lee, County Clerk Jawahn Ware and other staff.  The 

public and representatives of the media participated in person via live streaming of the meeting 

on the County’s Facebook page and the government public access channel.  County 

Administrator Michael McCoy 

 

The Chairman called for consideration the recommendation from the County Attorney to enter 

into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing personnel and then to adjourn. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Jones, the 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

There being no further discussion, the Board entered into Executive Session at 10:32 a.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

9

Item 5a.



10

Item 7a.



11

Item 7a.



 

                 Scott Addison 
         Assistant County Administrator 

 

 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                          ADMINISTRATION 

        

 

 
222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 office | 229.438.3967 fax  

dougherty.ga.us 

Agenda Item 

 

Date:   March 24, 2022 

 

Meeting Date:             March 28, 2022 

 

Subject/Title:  Mobile Radios for DCP 

 

Presented for:  Decision 

 

Presenter:                   Scott Addison, Asst. County Administrator 

 

Statement of Issue 

DCP is requesting to purchase fifty (50) mobile radios. 

 

History/Facts and Issues  

DCP is requesting to purchase fifty (50) mobile radios from the single source vendor Motorola 

Solutions (Albany, GA) in the amount of $278,647.81. This quote includes radios, upgraded 

equipment, installation and programming. This vendor provides radios for local public safety 

offices. 

 

Recommended Action 

Recommend Dougherty County Commission approves the purchase of mobile radios for DCP for 

a total expenditure of $278,647.81. 

 

Funding Source 

ARPA Funds 

12

Item 7b.



13

Item 7c.



A RESOLUTION 
ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A PROCUREMENT RECOMMENDATION 
FROM PUBLIC WORKS AND EXECUTING A CONTRACT WITH CONTINENTAL FLOORING 

COMPANY (SCOTTSDALE, AZ) FOR CARPET/COVE BASE REPLACEMENT AT THE DOUGHERTY 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT FOR A TOTAL EXPENDITURE OF $326,900; REPEALING 

RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;  
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia, is hereby desirous 
of approving a Procurement Recommendation from Public Works and executing a contract with 
Continental Flooring Company for carpet/cove base replacement at the Dougherty County Health 
Department for a total expenditure of $326,900. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, 
Georgia and it is hereby resolved by Authority of same as follows: 
 
 SECTION I    The attached Procurement Recommendation from Continental Flooring 
Company (Scottsdale, AZ) for providing carpet/cove base replacement at the Dougherty County 
Health Department for a total expenditure of $326,900 is hereby approved and the County 
Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a Contract and any other documents necessary for 
full implementation of the Procurement Recommendation.  
 
 SECTION II   All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 This the 4th day of April, 2022. 
 
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
       BY:___________________________ 
            Christopher S. Cohilas, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
County Clerk 
 

 

14

Item 7d.



15

Item 7d.



16

Item 7d.



      Scott Addison 
                  Assistant County Administrator 

 

 

 

 

                                                        

 DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                                ADMINISTRATION 

        

 

   
 

 
222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 | dougherty.ga.us 

Agenda Item 

 

Date:   March 24, 2022 

 

Meeting Date:             March 28, 2022 

 

Subject/Title:  Air Handler Replacement 

 

Presented for:  Decision 

 

Presenter:                   Scott Addison, Asst. County Administrator 

 

Statement of Issue 

Dougherty County Facilities Management needs to replace air handler unit #10 for the 

Dougherty County Health Department.  
 

History/Facts and Issues  

Dougherty County Facilities Management needs to replace air handler unit #10 for the 

Dougherty County Health Department. Four contractors were contacted and three quotes were 

obtained from RHC HVAC (Albany, GA), Johnson Controls (Leesburg, Ga), Quality Mechanical 

(Leesburg, Ga), and SafeAire Heating and Cooling (Albany, Ga).  The lowest quote being from 

RHC HVAC in the amount of $56,955.37. 
 

Recommended Action 

Recommend Dougherty County Commission accepts the quote from RHC HVAC to replace 

air handler #10 at the Dougherty County Health Department for a total expenditure of 

$56,955.37. 

 

Funding Source 

SPLOST VII Dougherty County Health Department 
 

Quotes meeting specifications 

SafeAire Heating & Cooling (Albany, Ga) $67,945 

RHC HVAC (Albany, Ga) $56,955.37 

Quality Mechanical (Leesburg, Ga) $74,514.30 

Johnson Controls (Leesburg, Ga) Not Interested  

17

Item 7e.



A RESOLUTION 
ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A PROCUREMENT RECOMMENDATION 
PROVIDING FOR A CONTRACT WITH CAREATC (TULSA, OKLAHOMA) TO PROVIDE ON-SITE 

MEDICAL SERVICES ON BEHALF OF DOUGHERTY COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
FOR A TOTAL EXPENDITURE OF $492,863.89; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF 

RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;  
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia, is hereby desirous 
of approving a Procurement Recommendation and executing a contract with CareATC to provide 
on-site medical services on behalf of Dougherty County Human Resources Department for a total 
expenditure of $492,863.89.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, 
Georgia and it is hereby resolved by Authority of same as follows: 
 
 SECTION I    The attached Procurement Recommendation providing for contracting with  
CareATC (Tulsa, Oklahoma) for the purpose of providing on-site medical services on behalf of 
Dougherty County Human Resources Department for a total expenditure of $492,863.89 is 
hereby approved and the County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a Contract for 
said services with CareATC and any other documents necessary  for full implementation of said 
contract. 
 
 SECTION II   All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 This the 4th day of April, 2022. 
 
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
       BY:___________________________ 
            Christopher S. Cohilas, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
County Clerk 
 

 

 

18

Item 7f.



19

Item 7f.



20

Item 7f.



21

Item 7f.



22

Item 7f.



A RESOLUTION 
ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF A PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA AND DCJ GLOBAL 

MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS, LLC PROVIDING FOR DOUGHERTY COUNTY JUDICIAL GRANT 
MANGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT RELATIVE TO A JUDICIAL GRANT FUND 
AWARD THROUGH THE JUDICIAL COUNCIL OF GEORGIA; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR  

PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;  
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia is desirous of 
executing a Professional Services Agreement between Dougherty County and DCJ Global 
Management Solutions, LLC providing for Dougherty County Judicial Grant Management and 
Administrative Support relative to a Judicial Grant Fund Award through the Judicial Council of 
Georgia. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, 
Georgia and it is hereby resolved by Authority of same as follows: 
 
 SECTION I    The attached Professional Services Agreement between Dougherty County, 
Georgia and DCJ Global Management Solutions, LLC providing for Dougherty County Judicial 
Grant Management and Administrative Support relative to a Judicial Grant Fund Award through 
the Judicial Council of Georgia is hereby approved and the County Administrator is hereby 
authorized to execute same.  The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute any and 
all other documents necessary for full implementation of the Professional Services Agreement. 
 
 SECTION II   All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 This the 4th day of April, 2022. 
 
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
       BY:___________________________ 
            Christopher S. Cohilas, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
County Clerk 

23

Item 7g.



24

Item 7g.



25

Item 7g.



26

Item 7g.



27

Item 7g.



28

Item 7g.



29

Item 7g.



30

Item 7g.



31

Item 7g.



32

Item 7g.



RESOLUTION TO ADOPT 
AMENDED AND RESTATED  

ACCG 401(a) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
FOR DOUGHERTY COUNTY EMPLOYEES 

 
WHEREAS, Dougherty County, Georgia (the “Employer”) has previously adopted the Association County 

Commissioners of Georgia (ACCG) 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan for Dougherty County Employees (the “Plan”) 

through an Adoption Agreement;  

 

WHEREAS, ACCG has appointed a Defined Contribution Plan Program Board of Trustees (the “DC Board”) 

pursuant to the ACCG Defined Contribution Plan Program Master Trust Agreement (the “Master Trust”), to oversee 

Plan administration, Plan documentation and to select investment options for investment of the assets of the Plan;  

 

WHEREAS, ACCG has amended and restated the ACCG 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan Document and the 

accompanying Adoption Agreement to reflect changes in applicable law and has obtained Internal Revenue Service 

(IRS) preapproval for the amended and restated ACCG 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan Document and Adoption 

Agreement (the “2020 IRS Pre-Approved Plan Documents”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Employer desires to amend and restate its Plan by adopting the 2020 IRS-Preapproved Plan 

Documents. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, at a meeting held on the _____  day of _________________, 20______, the Dougherty 

County Board of Commissioners hereby resolves as follows: 

 

 RESOLVED that the Dougherty County Board of Commissioners hereby approves the adoption of the 

attached amended and restated ACCG 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan for Dougherty County Employees, consisting 

of the ACCG Basic Plan Document and the accompanying Adoption Agreement which reflects the elections made by 

the Employer under the provisions of the amended and restated Plan. 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED that, except as otherwise specifically provided therein, the effective date of the 

amended and restated Plan shall be January 1, 2022. 

 

 FURTHER RESOLVED that the Commission Chair is hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to take all 

further actions and to execute all documents necessary to implement these resolutions.  

 

FURTHER RESOLVED that any resolution in conflict with this resolution is hereby repealed. 

 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

  

 

By: __________________________________________   

       Chair, Dougherty County Board of Commissioners  

  

Date: ________________________________________ 

 

 

Attest: 

 

By:  _________________________________________ 
        County Clerk 

33

Item 8a.

jware
Typewritten Text
4th

jware
Typewritten Text
April

jware
Typewritten Text
22

jware
Typewritten Text
April 4, 2022



SUMMARY OF DEFAULT ELECTIONS 

IN RESTATED ACCG DC PLAN  

ADOPTION AGREEMENT 

 

 

1. Section 3.06 Election Not to Participate – The new Adoption Agreement includes an election to allow Eligible 

Employees to opt out of participating in the Plan.  The default election is not to allow Eligible Employees to 

opt out of participating in the Plan (i.e., participation is automatic for employees who satisfy the eligibility 

requirements), unless your jurisdiction’s practice has been to allow Eligible Employees to make an election 

whether to participate.  Please contact ACCG before signing the Adoption Agreement if you wish to change 

the election shown in Section 3.06.   

 

2. Section 6.04 In-Service Withdrawals – The new Adoption Agreement includes an election to permit in-

service withdrawals from the Plan.  The default election is to permit in-service withdrawals only for Rollover 

Accounts and Active Military Distributions (i.e., no other withdrawals permitted until Severance from 

Employment).  If other in-service withdrawals are to be permitted, the Employer must specify the conditions 

for such withdrawal in the Adoption Agreement.  Please contact ACCG before signing the Adoption 

Agreement if you wish to change this election.  

 

3. Section 7.01 Death Benefits – The new Adoption Agreement includes an election with respect to death benefit 

payment forms.  The default election is to allow death benefits to be paid in any form permitted under the 

Plan for Participants. Please contact ACCG before signing the Adoption Agreement if you wish to change 

this election. 

 

4. Section 8.05 Participant Consent to Distributions – The new Adoption Agreement includes an election to 

require cash-out of small accounts without the consent of the Participant or Beneficiary.  The default election 

is not to mandate cash-outs of small accounts without the consent of the Participant or Beneficiary.  If the 

Employer elects to require small account cash-outs without consent, the Employer must also elect the small 

account cash-out limit in Section 8.05 of the Adoption Agreement. 

34

Item 8a.


	Top
	Item 5a.	Minutes
	2022.03.07 Minutes Regular
	2022.03.14 Minutes Work
	2022.03.14 Minutes SCM

	Item 7a.	Purchase a_DCP Vehicles
	Purchase a_DCP Vehicles

	Item 7b.	Purchase b_DCP Radios
	Purchase b_DCP Radios

	Item 7c.	Purchase c_Ambulance
	Purchase c_Ambulance

	Item 7d.	Purchase d_DHS Carpet
	Purchase d_Carpet Resolution
	Purchase d_Carpet

	Item 7e.	Purchase e_DHS AHU
	Purchase e_Health Dept AHU

	Item 7f.	Purchase f_Onsite Medical Clinic
	Purchase f_Onsite Medical Center Resolution
	Purchase f_Onsite Medical Center

	Item 7g.	Purchase g_Grants Admin Superior Court
	Purchase g_Resolution Grants Admin Superior Court
	Purchase g_Grants Admin Superior Court

	Item 8a.	Other a_Plan Reinstatement
	Other a_401 a Defined Plan
	Other a_Plan Summary

	Bottom

